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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infornlation of Line Mountain School 
District, Herndon, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
fInancial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the 
tabJe of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements hI 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to el:press opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
fInancial statements. The procedures selected depend Oil the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor c,onsiders internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
pre~entation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness oflhe entity's internal 
control.Accordingly, we el:press no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableuess of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Line Mountain School District, Herndon, 
Pennsylvania as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, 
cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Inforlllation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 7 through 19 and the schedule of funding progress for postemployment 
benefits other than pensions on page 69 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Stlmdards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the infonnation and compming the infol1nation for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purposc of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Line Mountain School District's, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, basic financial statemcnts. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling SlIch information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 19, 
2014, on our consideration of the Line Mountain School District's, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Tbat 
report. is an integral part of an audit performed in accordancc witb Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Linc Mountain Scbool District, Herndon, Pennsylvania's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

W~,~/~+~/A~, 
WAGNER, DREESE, ELSASSER & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
Certified Public Accollntants and Consultants 
Selinsgrove, P A 
November 19, 2014 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL IlISTRlCT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YI~AR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Ollt' discussion and analysis of the Line Mountain School District's financial pelformunce 
provides an overview of the fmancial activities for the liseal year ended June 30, 2014. 
Please read it in conjunction with the linancial statements, which follow this section. 

The Management Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) is Required Supplementary Infol11Jation 
as specified in the Govel'1lmental Accounting Standard Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 -
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and 
Local Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative information between the 
current year (2013 - 2014) and the prior year (2012 - 2013) is required to be presented in the 
MD&A. 

FINANCIAL IDGHLIGHTS 

• District-wide, net position increased by $1,135,994. Total revenues were $19,049,278 
und total expenditmes were $17,913,284. 

• General Fund expendihll'Cs were anticipated to be $101,600 greater than revenues, with 
this shortfall of money to be taken from the unreserved fund balance. Actnal results 
show that rcvenues cxceeded expenditlll'es by $1,285,456. Revenues were $1,076,316 
1110re than the budgeted amount and expenditures were $209,140 less tban the budgeted 
amount. 

OVERVIEW OF TIlE FINANCIAL STATElYIENTS 

This annual report consists of three parts, Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Basic 
Financial Statements, and Supplemental Information. The Basic Financial Statements include 
two kinds of statements that present different views of the District. 

• The first two statements arc district-wide linancial statements that provide both short­
term and long-term information about the District's overall financial status. 

• The remaining statcments are fund linancial statements that focus on individual parts of 
the District, reporting the District's operations in more detail than the district-wide 
statements. 

• The governmental filllds statements tell how basic services such as regular and special 
education were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. 

• Proprietmoy funds statemcnts offcr short and long-term financial information about the 
activities the District operates as a business, such as food service. 

e Fiduciary flinds stntements provide information about the iJnancinl relationships in which 
the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTlUCT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - c()ntinued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

The Basic Financial Statements also include Notes to Financial Statements, which explain 
some of the information in the statements and provides additional details. 

District-wide Stntcments 

The district-wide financial statements report information ab()ut the District as a whole llsing 
accollnting methods that are similar to private-sector companies. The Statement of Net 
Position includes assets and liabilities. All of the current year's rcvenues and expenses nrc 
included in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received 01' paid. 

The two district-wide statements repOlt net position anci how they have changed. Net position 
is the difference between assets, defened outflows of resources, liabilities and defened 
inflows of resources. 

In the district-wide financial statements, the District's activities are divided into two 
categories: 

• Govemmcntal activities - Basic scrvices are included here, such as regular education, 
special education, transportation, and administration. 

• Business-type activities - Fees arc charged to help covel' the costs of certain services. 
The District's food service is included here. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund finand"l statements provide more detailed information about the District's funds, 
focusing 011 its most significant 01' "major" funds and not the District as a whole. A fund is a 
fiscal and accounting cntity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and other 
resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities 01' balances, 01' changes 
therein. Funds are segregated for the pUl'pose of carrying on specific activities 01' attaining 
certain objectives ill accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. Each 
fund lIlllst be so accounted for that the identity of its resources, obligations, revenues, 
expendit11res, and fund equities is contimlHlly maintained. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .JUNE 30, 2014 

The Line Mountain School District has three types of funds: 

• Govelllmental funds -Most of the District's basic services are included ill 
governmental fimds, which generally focus on cash flows and year-end balances. 
These statements provide a detailed short -term view that helps to determine the 
available resources that can be spent in the neal' filture to finance the District's 
programs. Because this information does not encompass the long-term focus of the 
district-wide statements, we provide additional information with the governmental 
fimds statements to explain the relationships between them. 

• Proprietary funds - Services for which the Distl'ict charges a fee are generally 
rejJol'ted in proprietary funds. Proprietary fimds are repOlied the sallle way as the 
district-wide financial statements. 

• Fiduciary nmds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to 
others, such as the Student Activities Fund. The District is responsible for ensuring 
that the assets reported in these nmds are used only for their intended purposes, and 
by those to whom the assets belong. All the fiduciary activities are reported in a 
separate statement offiduciary net Jlosition. These activities are excluded from the 
district-wide financial statements because the District cannot lise these assets to 
finance its operations. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

FINANCIAL ANALYSlS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

Net assets - Combined net position was $14,251,577 on JUlie 30, 2014. See Table A·1. 

Table A·1 
Line Mountatn School Dtstrlct 

Net Assets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 

,--_ .. 
Governmental Activities Buslness·Type 

Activities District Totals -. 
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 

Current and other assets $14,233,600 $7,276,303 $153,066 $241,201 $14,386,666 $7,517,504 
Capilal assets 30,351,275 36,072,490 60,400 57,156 30,411,675 36,129,646 

Total Assets $44,584,875 $43,348,793 $213,466 $298,357 $44,798,341 $43,647,150 

Deferred Outflows of 1,705,000 1,233,085 0 0 1,705,000 1,233,085 
Resources 
Current lIa bilities 2,621,386 1,399,140 19,047 37,515 2,640,433 1,436,655 
Non-current liabilities 29,692,428 28,862,420 4,750 1,313 29,697,178 28,863,733 

TOlaI liabilities $32,313,814 $30,261,560 $23,797 $38,828 $32,337,611 $30,300,388 

Deferred Inflows of 139,600 322,151 0 6,119 139,600 328,270 
Resources 

-"-
Invested In capital assets, 
net of related debt 1,176,275 7,717,490 60,400 57,156 1,236,675 7,774,646 
Restricted net assets 56,281 34,106 0 0 56,281 34,106 

... 
-6;246,571 J:lrli:<'~trlcted net assets 12,603,905 129,269 196,254 12,733,174 6,442,825 

-------
Total Net Position $13,836,461 $13,998,167 $189,669 $253,410 $14,026,130 $14,251,577 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - contiulled 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE - con tinned 

Total Net Positioll- increased by $1,135,994 for year ending June 30, 2014. See Table A-2 

~evenues 
Program Revenues 
CharQes for services 
Operating grants & 

contributions 
Capital grants & contributions 

General Revenues 
Property taxes 
Other taxes --------
State formula aide 
Investment earnings 
Olher 

I----A-- -- ---
Sale of Fixed Assets 

Total Revenues 

Expenses 
instruction 
Instructional sludent support 
Administration 
Operation & maintenance of 

facilities 
Pupil transportation 
Student activities -
Community Service --- .. 
Interest on long-term debt 
Food service 

-
Total Expenses 

Increase in Net Assets 

Table A-2 
Llno Mountain School District 

Change In Net Assets 
Fiscal Years Ended Juno 3D, 2014 and 2013 

--
Governmental Activities Business-Type 

Activities 
2013 2014 2013 2014 

$42,947 $28,744 $278,315 $308,040 

3,482,867 3,647,959 326,320 347,183 
299,565 301,281 

4,954,697 6,163,331 
1,647,516 -2,042,906 
6,183,522 6,299,967 

3,621 8,211 34 73 
498,812 901,583 

$17,111,637 $18,393,982 $604,669 $665,296 

9,324,808 9,614,760 
1,390,482 1,180,536 
1,327,769 1,882,820 
2,050,608 1,925,130 

1,739,443 1,884,129 
374,752 379,737 _._-

0 0 
31,136 454,617 

592,719 691,555 
$16,238,998 $17,321,729 $592,719 $591,555 

$872,639 $1,072,253 $11,950 $63,741 
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District Totals 
"---

2013 2014 

$321,262 $336,784 

3,809,177 3,995,142 
299,565 301,281 

4,954,697 5,163,331 
1,647,616 2,042,906 
6,183,622 6,299,967 

3,655 8,284 
496,812 901,683 

0 0 
$17,716,206 $19,049,278 

- --

9,324,808 9,614,760 -
1,390,482 1,180,536 
1,327,769 1,882,820 
2,050,608 1,925,130 

1,739,443 1,884,129 
374,752 379,737 

0 0 
31,136 454,617 

592,719 591,555 
$16,831,717 $17,913,284 

--
$884,489 $1,135,994 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

FINANCIAL Al'lAL YSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE. continued 

Revenues - The District's total revenues were $19,049,278 for the year ended June 30, 2014. 
See Table A-2. Taxes and State Forlllula Aid made up 71% oftolal revenue for the year. 
Another 24% came ll'om state and federal aid [01' specific programs (operating and capital 
grants) and the remainder from fees charged for services as well as other sources. See Figure 
A-I. 

• Users of District programs paid $336,784. 
• The federal and state gove11lments subsidized certain programs with grants and 

contributions totaling $4,296,423. 
• District taxpayers paid $7,206,237. 
• State taxpayers paid $6,299,967. 
• Investment earnings were $8,284, 
• Other revenue totaled $901,583, 

Figure A-J 
SOllrces of Rcvenue :tor Fiscal Year 20 13 - 20 14 

INVESTMENT 
EARNINGS&~ 

OTHEH ~ 

" STATE FORMUlA 
AID,33% 

" OTH 
H% 

'~ ... .g ~.I 
1 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGElYIENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Expenditures" The totnl cost of all programs and services was $17,913,284. Instruction 
related expenses (Instruction, Instructional student support, Pupil transportation, and Student 
activities) accounted for 73% of the expenses. The remainder ofthe expenses were 
Administrative costs of 10%, Operation of facilities of II %, Food service of 3%, and Other 
costs at 3%. 

• Instruction related expenses were $11,175,033. 
• Administration and financial suppOli expenses were S I ,882,820. 
• The cost of operating and maintaining the facilities was $3,809,259. 
• Food service operations cost $591,555. 
• Interest on long-term debt obligations was $454,617. 

Figure A-2 
Expenditures for Fiscal Year 2013 - 2014 

I NTfREST ON LONG· 
TERM DEBT 

PUPil 

3% 

STUDENT ACTIVITIES 
2% 

TRANSPORTATION ------c 
10% 

OPERATION & 
MAINTENANCE OF 

FACILITIES 
11% 

ADMINISTRATION 
FINANCIAL SUPPORT 

W% 

fOOD SEHVICE 
3% 

INSTRUCTIONAL 
STUDENT SUPPORT 

7% 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

I 
I student support 

1 1<0 financial support 
11<0 of faeiUUa, 

IPupll 
IStudenl I 

. 'sorJ"". 
Ifnlerest on , I debt 
, Food seNee 

Total 

Tabla A·3 
Line Mountain School District 

Net Cost of Governmontal Aotlvltles 

T ota I Cost of 

2013 201. ~ 
$0,614, 

~ ~ 92f,1< 12\ 
, , 884 1,121 12\ 
374,752 1.33% 

0.00% 
31,136 1360.10% 

592,719 .().20% 

, ~1 t, , 6,43% 

Not Cost of 

2013 
$ 

~ 4;'4 

$12,401,713 

IPereal1ta"" 
Chanoe 

201. 2014 

$~ ; 2.87% 
1, 
1,791 /12 42.37% 
,,831 .550 ·7,47% 

5.78% 
0.00 

153,338 
434.31' 

'.08% 

The District's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $5,360,646 whicb is 
a llet decrease 0[$5,870,619 fi'om the prior year. TIle schedule below summarizes the nilld 
balances and the total changes in fund balances as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2014. 

General Fund Restricted 
General Fund Committed 
General FUnd UnreselWd 
Capital Commitled 
Capital Projects Assigned 

Tolal Gowrnmenlal Funds 

--

LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Year Ended Year Ended Increase 
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 (Decrease) 

68.183 34,106 ($34,077) 
$931,210 $1,358,642 $427,432 
2,415,647 3,307,748 892,101 
7,510,882 374,152 (7,136,730) 

305,343 285,998 (19,345) 

-11,231,265 5,360,646 (5,870,619) 
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Percent of 
Change 

-49.98% 
45.90% 
36.93% 

-95.02% 
-6.34% 

-109.51% 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL FUND 

The following schedule provides a summary of General Fund revenues and Other 
Finance Sources. 

Sources 

Total General FIlIld revenue, exclusive of Other somces, increased by $854,893 01' 4.93% 
ii'om the previous year, Tax collections increased $236,386 - increase of 3.45% from the 
previous year. Oilier increased by $310,535 due primary to a refund from Highmul'k Blue 
Shield. 

The increase ill state funding $310,535 is attributable to the state designating a portiol) of 
thnds as federal appropriations which is driven by finance formula changes enacted by the 
state legislatmc to jJrovide net funding increases for public school regular and special 
education programs. 

Other sources-net decreased due to the refinancing of General Obligation Bond Series A of 
2014 for 6,250,000 and Series B 01'2014 tor 1,795,000. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

GENERAL IIUND - continued 

The following schedule provides a summary of General Fund expenditures: 

GENERAL FUND - continued 

The following schedule provides a summary of General Fund expenditures: 

Vear Ended Vear Ended Increase 
June 30 2013 Juno 30 2014 (Decrease) 

Salaries $7,058,215 $7,077,578 19,363 
Employee benefits 3,288,893 3651,596 362,703 
Puichased services 3,799829 4,174,569 374,740 
Supplies 539,147 381,482 (157665 
Properlv 159,576 134924 (24,652 
Other 788,596 908,348 119752 
Capital outlay 0 0 , 0 
Debt service 10,445,000 8,885,000 (1,560,000 
Interfund Transfers Out 300,000 0 (300,000 

Total Expenditures $26,379,256 $25,213,497 -$1165,759 

Total General Fund expenditures decreased by $1,165,759 ii-om the previous ycar, Salaries 
increased by $19,363 or .27% due to staff changes and no salary increases because of 
ongoing contract settlement with the teachers. Employce benefits increased $362,703 ot· 
11.03% due to employees retirement fund (PSERS) and medical insmance increases. 
Purchased service cost (transportation, healing, tuition payments and special edllcation) 
increased by $374,740. Instructional and maintenance supplies were reduced by $157,665. 
Property and Capital outlay increased by a total of $9 5, I 00 due to the building renovations. 
Dcbt service costs decreased mainly due to the refinancing of General Obligation Bond 
Series A 0[2014 in the amount of 6,250,000 and Series B 0[2014 in the amount of 
1,795,000. 
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Percent of 
Change 

0.27% 
11.03% 
9.86% 

-29.24% 
-15.45% 
15.19% 
0.00% 

-14.94% 

-4.42% 



LINE MOUNT AlN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISClJSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

General Fund - continued 
General Fund Budget 
Over the course of the year, the District reviews expenditures and makes appropriate 
adjustments to covel' unexpected expenditures in the annual operating budget due to increases 
in appropriations of significant budgeted costs. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
The District has invested $49,805,582 in a broad range of capital assets, including land, 
buildings, athletic facilities, fumiture, computers, audio-visual equipment. AccunHllated 
depreciation on these assets was $13,675,936 at June 30, 2014. Depreciation expense for the 
year was $1,292,796. 
CtU1'ent year purchases of capital (lssets totaled $7,084,927. Detailed information concerning 
capital assets can be found in Notes to Financial Statements, Note 6. 

_and 
I ,and I 

Less I Depr. 
'urnilure and i 
Less ACCIl I Deor. 

lin 

i (Nen 

I I and I=mlinmArtI 

Lass I Depr. 

Bu I , (Nell 

Tabte 4-A 
LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

, 
(4.591.667\ 

o 

$30.351.275 

$342.076 
(281,676) 
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4.944 1.45% 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

LONG·TERM LIABILITIES 

At year.end, the District had $28,355,000 in general obligation bonds and $507,420 of 
accrued compensated absences plus Post Employment Benefits, See Notes to Financial 
Statements, Note 8, and Table A·5, 

Table A-S 
Outstanding Long-torm Liabilities 

Year Ended Year Ended Increase Percent of 
Juno 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 (Decrease) Change 

Generat Obligation Bonds $2~, 175,000 $28,355,000 ($820,000) -2.81% 
Accumulated Compensated Absences 334,232 308,859 (25,373) ~7,59% 

Post Employment Benefits 187,946 199,551 10,616 6.65% 

Total $29,697,178 $28,552,420 ($834,758) -2.81% 

FACTORS INFLUENCING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL FUTURE 

There are several m~or tactors that will have a significant influence on the District's 
tlnancial future, During the 2007-08 tlscal year, Act 1 of 2006 was passed which limits 
future real estate tax increases to un inflation factor each year, The District plans to raise real 
estate taxes above the Act 1 index amount through an exception process in order to cover 
decreasing state funding and fhture renovation projects. 
The Public School Employee's Retirement System funding crisis will make future fiscal 
years chaHenging, PSERS has increased 26% fOJ'the 14·15 school year with a projectcd 
increase of21 % for the 15-16 school year. Current projections of state subsidies reflect 
significant decreases that will advel'sely affect the educational process statewide, Line 
MOlmtnin is preparing for this by reviewing all expenditures for upcoming fiscal years, 
Health Cal'e with Highmark Blue Shield anticipates an overall increase between 15 to 20 
percent. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRlCT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS - continued 

FOR Tm; YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

CONTACTING THE DISTRlCT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and 
creditors with a general overview oflhe District's finances and to demonstrate the District's 
accountability for the money it receives. Ifyo\l have any questions concc1'1ling tltis report, 01' 

require any additional financial infol1l1ation, please contact the Line Mountain School 
District, Business Office, 185 Line Mountain Road, l-Ie1'lldon, PA 17830. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DlSTRICf 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Taxes Receivable, Net 
Intergovernmental Receivables 
Other Receivables 
Inventories 
Prepaid Expenses 
Capital Assets: 

Land 
Building and Building Improvements, Net 
Furniture and Equipment, Net 

Total Capital Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Gain on Refinancing 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Governmental 
, Activities 

$ 983,442 
5,174,576 

879,334 
226,335 

10,821 

1,795 

410,066 
33,903,751 

1,758,673 

36,072,490 

S 43,348,793 

$ 1,233,085 

$ 1,233,085 

Business - Type 

Activities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

17,285 
179,220 

35,429 
3,148 
6,119 

57,156 

57,156 

298,357 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statcmcnts. 

Total 

$ 1,000,727 
5,353,796 

879,334 
261,964 

13,969 
6,119 
1,795 

410,066 
33,960,907 

1,758,673 

36,129,646 

$ 43,647,150 

$ 1,233,085 

$ 1,233,085 



Governmental Business - Type 
Activities Activities Total 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $ 405,329 $ 17,604 $ 422,933 

Accrued Salaries and Benefits 896,334 11,710 908,044 

Intergovermnental Payables 23 23 

Other Current Liabilities 97,454 8,201 105,655 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Due WiUlin One Year: 

Bonds Payable 805,000 805,000 

Compensated Absences 30,000 30,000 

Due in More Than One Year: 
Bonds Payable 27,550,000 27,550,000 

Compensated Absences 278,859 1,313 280,172 

Other Postemployment Benefits 198,561 198,561 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 30,261,560 $ 38,828 $ 30,300,388 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Donated Connnodities $ $ 6,119 $ 6,119 
Deferred Bond Premiums 322,151 322,151 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 322,151 $ 6,119 $ 328,270 

NET POSITION 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 7,717,490 $ 57,156 $ 7,774,646 

Restricted 34,106 34,106 

Umestricted 6,246,571 196,254 6,442,825 

TOTAl, NET POSITION $ 13,998,167 $ 253,410 $ 14,251,577 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 

Governmental Activities: 

Instruction 
Instructional Student Support 
Administrative & Financial Support Services 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services 
Pupil Transportation 
Student Activities 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 

Food Services 

TOTAL PIUMARY GOVERNMENT 

Expenses 

$ 9,614,760, 
1,180,,536 
1,882,820, 
1,925,130, 
1,884,129 

379,737 
454,617 

17,321,729 

591,555 

$ 17,913,284 

General Revenues: 

Income: 
Taxes: 

$ 

$ 

PROGRAM 

Charges for 
Services 

28,744 

28,744 

30,8,0,40, 

336,784 

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes, Net 

Earned Income Tax, Net 
Public Utility, Realty, Transfer and Miscellaneous 

Taxes Levied for Gencral Purposes, Net 
Grants, Subsidies & Contributions Not Rcstricted 
Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total Gencral Revenues and Special Items 
Change in Net Position 
Net Position - July 1,20,13 as restated 
Nct Position - June 3D, 20,14 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements. 



REVENUES 
Capital Grants Operating 

and Grants and 
Contributions Contributions 

$ $ 1,974,196 
93,545 
91,108 
93,580 

1,395,530 

301,281 
301,281 3,647,959 

347,183 

$ 301,281 $ 3,995,142 

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Goverl1Il1ental 
Activities 

$ (7,640,564) 
(1,086,991) 
(1,791,712) 
(1,831,550) 

(488,599) 
(350,993) 

{153,3362 
{13,343,7452 

(13,343,745) 

5,163,331 
819,983 

1,222,923 
·6,299,967 

8,211 
901,583 

14,415,998 
1,072,253 

12,925,914 
$ 13,998,167 
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Business - Type 
Activities 

$ 

63,668 

63,668 

73 

73 
63,741 

189,669 
$ 253,410 

$ 

$ 

TOlal 

(7,640,564) 
(1,086,991) 
(1,791,712) 
(1,831,550) 

(488,599) 
(350,993) 

{153,3362 
(13,343,7452 

63,668 

(13,280,077) 

5,163,331 
819,983 

1,222,923 

6,299,967 
8,284 

901,583 . 

14,416,071 
1,135,994 

13,115,583 
14,251,577 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2014 

Capital Total 
Proiects Governmental 

General Fund Funds Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 983,442 $ $ 983,442 
Investments 4,462,613 711,963 5,174,576 
Taxes Receivable, Net 879,334 879,334 
Intergovernmental Receivables 226,335 226,335 
Other Receivables 10,821 10,821 
Prepaid Expenses 1,795 1,795 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,564340 $ 711,963 $ 7.276303 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUl\'D BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable $ 353,516 $ 51,813 $ 405,329 
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 896,334 896,334 
Intergovernmental Payables 23 23 

Total Liabilities 1,249,873 51,813 1,301,686 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 613,971 613,971 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 613,971 613,971 

Fund Balances: 

Non-spendable 
Restricted 34,106 34,106 
Committed 1,358,642 374,152 1,732,794 
Assigned 285,998 285,998 
Unassigned 3,307,748 3,307,748 

Total Fund Balances 4,700,496 660,150 5,360,646 

TOTAL LIABILITES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES At'!D FUND BALANCES $ 6,564,340 $ 111,963 $ 1.276,303 

The accompanying notes are un integral part of these financial statements, 

22 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
net position are different because: 

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources, and therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental 
funds. The cost of assets is $49,458,562 and the accumulated 
depreciation is $13,386,072. 

Long-tenn liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and 
payable in the current period, and therefore, are not reported as 
liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end consist of: 

Bonds Payable 
Compensated Absences 
Postemployment Benefits 

Taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not 
available soon enough to pay for the current period's 
expenditures, and therefore, are deferred in the funds. 

Governmental funds report debt issuance premiums and disconnts 

( 28,355,000) 
( 308,859) 
( 198.561) 

as another financing source or use at the time of issnance. Premiums, 
discounts, and deferred charges are reported as an unamortized asset 
or liability in the District-wide financial statements. 

Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest until 
Due and payable. 

TOTAL NET l'OSfrrON - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

$ 5,360,646 

36,072,490 

(28,862,420) 

613,971 

910,934 

( 97,454) 

$ .13.,998.167 

The accompanying notes are an integml part of these financial statements. 

23 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds 

REVENUES 

Local Revenues 
State Program Revenues 
Federal Program Revenues 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Instruction 
Support Selvices 
Operation of Non-Instruction Services 
Capital Outlay 
Debt Selvices 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICmNCY) OF 

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINA1\'CING SOURCES (USES) 

Bond Proceeds 
Bond Premium 
Payment to Refund Bond Escrow Agent 
Sale of Fixed Assets 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE" JULY 1, 2013 

FUND BALANCE" JUNE 30, 2014 

June 30, 2014 

General Fund 

$ 7,961,969 
9,902,628 

346,579 
18,211,176 

8,885,574 
6,201,779 

350,251 
4,180 

1,836,713 
17,278,497 

932,679 

8,045,000 
182,555 

(7,935,000) 
60,222 

352,777 

1,285,456 

3,415,040 

$ 4,700,496 

$ 

Capital 
Projects 
Fnnds 

476 

476 

7,156,551 

7,156,551 

(7,156,075) 

(7,156,075) 

7,816,225 

$ 660,150 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 7,962,445 
9,902,628 

346,579 
18,211,652 

8,885,574 
6,201,779 

350,251 
7,160,731 
1,836,713 

24,435,048 

(6,223,396) 

8,045,000 
182,555 

(7,935,000) 
60,222 

352,777 

(5,870,619) 

11,231,265 

$ 5,360,646 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

TOTAL NET CIIAt'lGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the 
Statement of Activities, the cost of those asscts is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 
governmental fund, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. AIso, 
govermnental funds report the effect of premiums, discollnts, and 
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amollnts are 
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. This amount 
is the net effect on these differences in the treatmcnt of long-terrn debt 
and related items. 

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds, 
whereas, in governmental funds, an interest expenditure is reported 
when due. 

Because some propcrty and earned income taxes wilInot be collected 
for several months after the District's year-end, they are not 
considered as available revcnues in the governmental funds. 

Deferred gains on bond refunding and original issue discounts are 
capitalized and amortized. 

Postemeploymellt Benefit Expense 

Change in Compensated Absences 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

2S 

$(5,870,619) 

5,721,215 

820,000 

122,108 

256,081 

( 10,615) 

20,623 

$ 1.072 253 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances, Budget and Actual 
General and Special Revenue Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

GENERAL FUND 

REVENUES 

Local Revenues 
State Revenues 
Federal Revenues 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Regular Programs 
Special Programs 
Vocational Programs 
Other Instructional Progranls 
Pupil Personnel Services 
Instructional Staff Services 
Administrative Services 
Pupil Health 
Business Services 
Operation and Maintenance 
of Plant Services 

Student Transportation Services 
Central and Other Support Services 
Student Activities 
Building Improvements 
Debt Services (principal and-Interest) 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 

REVEl\'UFll OVER EXPENDITURES 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

$ 6,940,888 
9,874,565 

319,407 
17,134,860 

6,926,751 
1,725,962 

472,191 
188,745 
531,306 
376,286 
979,386 
208,522 
307,309 

1,325,591 
1,667,726 

234,256 
464,909 

1,827,520 
17,236,460 

(101,600} 

$ 6,940,888 
9,874,565 

319,407 
17,134,860 

6,926,450 
1,723,962 

468,589 
188,745 
529,322 
380,588 
984,571 
208,522 
307,309 

1,319,233 
1,667,726 

232,656 
471,267 

1,827,520 
17,236,460 

(101,600) 

Actual 
(Budgetary 

Basis) 

$ 7,961,969 
9,902,628 

346,579 
18,211,176 

6,501,784 
1,859,198 

409,144 
115,448 
500,433 
354,805 

1,216,111 
234,632 
293,525 

1,634,267 
1,739,425 

228,581 
350,251 

4,180 
1,836,713 

17,278,497 

932,679 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 1,021,081 
28,063 
27,172 

1,076,316 

424,666 
(135,236) 

59,445 
73,297 
28,889 
25,783 

(2;11,540) 
(26,110) 
13,784 

(315,034) 
(71,699) 

4,075 
121,016 

(4,180) 

(9,193} 
(42,037} 

1,034,279 



LmE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances, Budget and Actual 
General and Special Revenue Funds - continued 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

GENERAL FOND 

OTHER FINAL'IICING SOURCES (USES) 

Bond Proceeds 

Bond Premuims 
Payment to RefUlid Bond 

Escrow Agent 
Sale of Fixed Assets 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE· JULY 1, 2013 

FUND BALANCE· JUNE 30,2014 

Budgeted Amonnts 
Original Final 

(101,600) (101,600) 

3,415,040 3,415,040 

$ 3,313,440 $ 3,313,440 

Actual 
(Budgetary 

Basis) 

8,045,000 
182,555 

(7,935,000) 
60,222 

352,777 

1,285,456 

3,415,040 

$ 4,700,496 

The School District does not formally adopt a budget for its Special Revenue Funds. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

8,045,000 
182,555 

(7,935,000) 
60,222 

352,777 

1,387,056 

$ 1,387,056 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Net Position 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash 
Investments 
Intergovernmental Receivables 
Other Receivables 
Inventories 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Furniture and Equipment, Net 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accmed Salaries and Benefits 
Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Compensated Absences 

Total Liabilities 

peferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred Donated COlmnodities 

Total Deferrred Inflows of Resources 

Proprietary Fund 
June 30, 2014 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Enterprise 
Fund 

Food Service 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

17,285 
179,220 

35,429 
3,148 
6,119 

241,201 

57,156 
57,156 

298,357 

17,604 
11,710 
8,201 

37,515 

1,313 
38,828 

6,119 
6,119 

253,410 

57,156 
196,254 

253,410 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Food Service Revenue 
Other Operating Revenue 

Total Operating Revennes 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Pmchased Property 
Other Purchased Service 
Supplies 
Depreciation Expense 

Total Operating Expcmlitures 

OPERA11NG LOSS 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Earnings on Investments 
State Sources 
Federal Sources 

Total Nonoperating Revennes (Expenses) 

CHANGES Il'I NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSmON - JVL Y 1, 2013 

TOTAL NET POSITION - JUNE 30,2014 

The accompanying notes are an iJitegrai part of these financial statements. 
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Enterprise 
Fund 

Food Service 

$ 307,651 
389 

$ 

308,040 

148,047 
36,237 

40 
2,508 

352,936 
43,598 

8,189 
591,555 

(283,515) 

73 
40,192 

306,991 
347,256 

63,741 

189,669 

253,410 



UNE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTIUCT 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

CASHELOWS FROM OPERATING ACIIVITIES 

Cash Received from Users 
Cash Received from Other Operating Revenues 
Cash Payments to Employees fur Services 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Net Cash Used fur Operating Activities 

CASHELOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FlNANClNG ACTIVlTIES 

S tate Sources 
Federal Sources 

Net Cash Provided by N Ollcapital Financing Activities 

CASHELOWS FROM CAPITAL ANDRElATIllH1NANCINGACIIVITIES 

Pruchase of Fixed Assets 
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROMINVESTINGACTIVIrms 

Purchase ofInvestments 
Eal1ling,~ on Investments 

Net Cash Used by IIwcstingActivities 

NEI' DECRMSElN CASH Ai'lD CASHEQUIV AUNTS 

CASIIAND CASHEQUIV ALEi\'TS - Beginning ofYeal' 

CASHANDCASHEQUIVAlJiNTS -End of Year 

The accompanying notcs are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Enterprise 
Flllld 

Food Service 

$ 307,933 
389 

(181,548) 
(381,852) 
(255,078) 

37,486 
274,267 
311,753 

(4,944) 
(4,944) 

(34,519) 
73 

(34,446) 

17,285 

$ 17,285 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Cash Flows - continued 

Proprietary Ftmd 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED FOR 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

ADJUSTMlCNTS TO RECONClLlC OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USlCD 

FOR OPERATING ACTIVmES 

Depreciation Expense 
(Increase) Decrease in Other Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued SalariesfBenefits 
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenues 
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 

Total Adjustments 

NlCT CASH USED FOR OPlCRATING ACTIVITIlCS 

The accompanyulg notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Enterprise 
Fund 

Food Service 

S (283,515) 

8,189 
(528) 
(374) 

17,604 
6,173 

810 
(3,437) 
28,437 

$ (255,078) 



LINE MOUNT AlN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 
June 30, 2014 

Private Total 
Purpose Student Fiduciary 

Trusts Activity Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 35,214 $ 57,079 $ 92,293 

Total Assets $ 35,214 $ 57,079 $ 92,293 

LIABILITIES 

Due to Students $ $ 57,079 S 57,079 

Total Liabilities 57,079 57,079 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES $ 35,214 $ $ 35,214 

NETPosmON 

Net Position Held in Trust for Scholarships $ 35,214 $ 35,214 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 35,214 $ 35,214 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ADDITIONS: 

Gifts and Contributions 
Investment Income 

Total Additions 

DEDUCITONS: 

Scholarships Awarded 

Total Deductions 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

liNE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICI' 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

TOTAL NET POSITION· JULY 1, 2013 

TOTAL NET POSITION· JUNE 30, 2014 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 

Trust 

6,944 
17 

6,961 

18,293 

18,293 

(11,332) 

46,546 

35,214 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements of the School District have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and 
financial repoiting principles. The most significant of the school district's accounting policies are described 
below. 

A. Basis of Pl'escntation 

In June 2011, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Olltflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position. The statement places deferred outflows 
of resources in a separate section following assets, while deferred inflows of resources are reported in 
a separate section following liabilities. Therefore, assets plus deferred outflows of resources less 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources equal net position. The exception is for governmental 
funds, where the format would be assets plus deferred outflows of resources equal liabilities plus 
deferred inflows of resources plus fund balance. 

In March 2012, GASB quickly followed with Statement No. 65, Items Previollsly Reported as Assets 
and Liabilities, which amends the financial statement classification of certain items to now be 
included in the deferred inflows and outflows categories that changed the structure of the balance 
sheet in Statement No. 63. 

B. Financial Reporting Entity 

As defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the School 
District is considered a "primary govemmenl." The School District is govemed by a nine member 
board to which each member is elected by the citizens of each defincd district. 

For financial reporting purposes, Line Mountain School District has included all funds and 
organizations. The District has also considered all potential component units for which it is 
financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the District are such that exelusion would cause the District's financial statements to 
be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to 
be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting 
majority of an organization's governing body and (I) the ability of the District to impose its will on 
that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to providc specific benefits to or impose 
specific financial burdens on the District. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

B. Financial Reporting Entity - continued 

The School District participates in a jointly governed orgaoization. The organization is the 
Northumberland County Career and Technology Center. The organization is presented in Note 11 to 
the basic financial statements. 

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-wide .Financial Statements - The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the District. For the most part, 
the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, 
which normally are supported by tax and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of net position presents the District's non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the 
difference reported as net position. Net Positions is reported in three categories: 

1. Net Investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and 
reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes and other debt attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

2. Restricted net positions result when constraints placed on net position use are either externally 
imposed or imposed by law tllfOugh constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Unrestricted net positions consist of net positions not meeting the definition of the two 
preceding categories. Unreslricted net positions often have constraints on resources imposed by 
management which can be removed or modified. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates tlle degree to which the direct expenses of a given function, 
or segment, are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly identifiable with a 
specific function. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, 
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants, 
contributions and interest restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function. Property taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues .. 

35 



UNE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - continued 

Fund financial statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary 
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

The School District reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - This is the School District's primary operating fund. The general fund is used to 
account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. 

Capital Projects Fund - This is used to account for financial resources to be used for capital 
improvements, and the construction, replacements, additions, and maintenance to facilities, and 
purchase of school buses. 

All other governmental funds not meeting the criteria established for major funds are presented in the 
other governmental column of the fund financial statements. 

TIle School District reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The District's proprietary fund is the Cafeteria Fund. This fund is used to account for the cafeterias of 
the District. 

The School District also reports fiduciary funds which focus on net position and changes in net 
position. 

The District's fiduciary funds include the following: 

SCHOLARSHIP FUND 
ACTNITIY FUND 

Additionally, the school district reports the following fund types: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are llsed to account for and report financial 
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including 
the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - continued 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds - These funds arc used to account for those operations that are financed and 
opcrated in a manner similar to private business enterprises or where the School District has 
decided that periodic detennination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is 
necessary for mamigement accountability. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Private-purpose Trust Funds - Private-purpose Trust Funds are used to report all trust 
arrangements, other than those properly reported elsewhere, in which the principal and income 
benefit individuals, private organizations or other governments. 

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the District in a purely 
custodial capacity (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement PI'esentation 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, govenuncntal 
activities are presented using the economic resonrces measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund financial statements. Revenues are recnrded 
when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred or economic asset used, 
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Grants ,md similar items are recognized as revenue 
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as 
they are both measurable and available. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably 
estimate the amount. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. 
Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Federal grants and assistance awards made on tbe basis of entitlement periods are recorded as 
receivables and revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement type grants are recorded as 
revenues when the related expenditures are recognized. Usc of grant resources is conditioned upon 
compliance with terms of the grant agreemcnts and applicable federal regulations, which include 
subjecting grants to financial illld compliance audits. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued 

Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues (shared revenues, grants and reimbursements from other 
governments) and interest associated with the current fiscal peliod are all considered to be susceptible 
to accrual. 

Property taxes are levied by the School District upon an assessed value times an approved millage 
rate. See Note 3 for further details. 

Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in govenmlental funds. Proceeds of general 
long-tenn debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Under the tenns of grant agreements, the District funds certain programs by a combination of specific 
cost-reinlbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there 
are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the District's 
policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues. 

The effect on inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide statements. 

The acconnt classifications used in the financial statements confoflll to tbe broad classifications 
recommended in Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Fbzancial Reporting, issued in 2014 by the 
Government Finance Officers Association and are consistent with the broad classifications 
recommended in Financial Accollnting for Local and State School Systems, 2009, issued by the U.S. 
Department of Education. 

E. Basis of Accounting 

1. Revenues - Exchange and Noncxchange Transactions 

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially 
equal value, is recorded on the accrnal basis whim the exchange takes place. On the modified 
accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and 
become available. Available means the resonrces will be collected within the current fiscal year or 
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal 
year. For the School District, available means expected to be received within shty days of fiscal 
year end. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

E. Basis of Accounting - continued 

1. Revenues - Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions - continued 

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving 
equal value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On 
the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes 
are levied. Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned. 
Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, 
which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is 
first permitted; matching requirements, in which the School District must provide local resources 
to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditures requirements, in which the resources are 
provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue 
fromnonexchange transactions mnst also be available before it can be recognized. 

Under tlle modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered both measurable 
and available at fiscal yearend: property taxes available as an advance, income taxes, grants, 
interest, tuition and student fees. 

2. Expenses/Expenditures 

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. 

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in nct financial resources 
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expcnditures are generally recognized in the accounting 
period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as 
depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds. . 

F. Budgetary Process 

The operating budget is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. An 
annual budget prepared by function and object is fonnally adopted for the General Fund. Project­
length financial plans are used for Capital Projects Fund. 

The budget may be amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in revenue arc 
identified by the Business Manager. The amounts reported as the original budgeted amonnts on the 
budgetary statements reflect the amounts on the budget when the original appropriations were 
adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts on the budgetary statements reflect the 
anlOunts on the final amended budget issued during the fiscal year 2014. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

F. Budgetary Process - continued 

The appropriation resolution is subject to amendment throughout the year with the restriction that 
appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources. The amounts reported as the original budgeted 
amounts reflect the first appropriation resolution for that fund that covered the entire fiscal year, 
iucluding amounts automatically carried forward from prior fiscal years. The ,unounts reported as the 
final budgeted amounts represent the final appropriation amounts passed by the Board during the 
fiscal year. 

G. Encumbrances 

An encumbrance system is maintained to account for commitmenl~ or assignments resulting from 
approved purchase orders, work orders and contracts. However, the School District attempts to 
liquidate all encumbrances at year-end. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported within 
committed or assigned fund balances. 

H. Cash and Investments 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and certificates of deposit. Investments consist of 
repurchase agreements and funds invested in the P A Treasury Investment Program and are stated at 
cost, which approximates market value. This is in accordance with Section 440.1 of the School Code. 

I. Taxes Receivable and Deferred Inflows 

Taxes receivable consist of delinquent real estate taxes due at June 30, 2014, less an allowance for the 
alIlount of these delinqnencies not expected to be collected within the next fiscal year. 

Deferred revenue consists of the amount of taxes receivable at June 30, 2014, less the amount actually 
collected and remitted to the School District in July "and August 2014. 

J. Due l,'rom/To Other Fuuds 

During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or 
services rendered. These receivables and payables, to the extent they exist, are classified as "Due 
from Other Funds" or "Due to Other Funds" 011 the balance sheet. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

K Invcntories 

On government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at cost on a first-in, first-out 
basis, and are expensed when uscd. 

Inventories in governmcntal funds are stated at cost by the first-in, first-out method. The purchase 
method is used to account for inventories. Under the purchase method, inventories are recorded as 
expenditures when purchased. 

A physical inventory of the Food Service Fund food and supplies was takcn as of June 30, 2014. The 
inventory consisted of goverlllllent donated commodities which were valued using USDA values, and 
other cafeteria supplies valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Any unused 
commodities donated by the federal government at June 30, 2014 are reported as deferred revenue. 

L. Capital Asscts 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
sidewalks and sinlilar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statemcnts. Capital assets are defined by the School 
District as assets with an initial individual cost of more than: equipment - $1,500, vehicles - $10,000, 
and building improvements - $25,000, and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
Management has elected to include certain homogeneous asset categories with individual assets less 
than $1,500 as composite groups for financial reporting purposes. In addition, capital assets 
purchased with a long-term debt may be capitalized regardless of the thresholds established. Such - i 
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part 
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

L. Capital Assets - continued 

All capital assets, except land, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining 
useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives. 

Description 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Building Improvements 

Vehicles 

Furniture and Equipment 

M. Long-Term Liabilities 

Estimated Lives 

Not Depreciated 

12 years 

40 years 

5 - 15 years 

12 years 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt aud other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. 
Issuance costs whether or not withheld fTom the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as 
admiuistrative expenditures. 

N. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

O. Fund Balances 

Fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to wllich the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific 
pUIposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. 

Governmental fund balance is classified as llonspcndable, restricted, committed, assigned or 
unassigned. Following are descriptions of fund classifications used by the district: 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

O. Fund Balances· continued 

Non-spendable fllnd balance includes items tbat cannot be spent. This includes activity that is not in a 
spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-tenn portion of loans/notes receivable, or 
property held for resale unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned) and activity that is 
legally or contractually required to remain intact, such as a principal balance in a permanent fund. 

Resh'ic/ed ftmd balance includes amounts that have constraints placed upon the use of the resources 
either by an external party or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or enabling 
legislation. 

Committed ftmd balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by a formal action of the School Board, the District's highest level of decision­
making authority. This formal action is the approval of a resolution for a specific purpose. 

Assigned ftmd balance includes amounts that are constrained by the District's intent to be used for a 
specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. For governmental funds, other than the 
general fund, this is the residual amount within the fund that is n'ot restricted or committed, 
AssigllIllents of fund balance are created by the Business Manager pursuant to authorization 
established by the board. 

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification 
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and lhal has not been restricted, 
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund should be the 
only fUild that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, it 
may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance. 

When an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 
(committed, assigned, or unassigned) resources are available, it is the District's general policy to use 
restricted resources first. When expenditures/expenses are incurred for purposes for which 
unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) resources are available, and amounts in any of 
these unrestricted classifications could be used, it is the District's general policy to spend committed 
resources first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

O. Fund Balances - continued 

Governmental Fund Balances 

Governmental Fund Balances consist?f the following at June 30, 2014: 

Capital 
General Projects 

Fund Fund 

Non Spendable: $ $ 

Restricted: 
Access Funds 34,106 

Committed: 
Capital Improvements 374,152 
Pension Obligation 330,000 
Early Retirement Obligation 90,000 
Lease Obligations 88,642 
Medical Insurance 850,000 

Assigued: 
Capital Improvements 285,998 

Unassigned: 
Unassigned 3,307,748 

Total Fund Balances $ 4700,496 $ 660.150 

Total 

$ 

34,106 

374,152 
330,000 

90,000 
88,642 

850,000 

285,998 

3,307,748 

$ 5360,646 

Although the board restricts the use of the Capital Projects Fund assets for construction, additions and 
equipment, Fixed Assets can be purchased out of the General Fuud if the items are budgeted for in the 

annual budget. 

When the District incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or unrestricted net 
positions, it uses restricted net positions first unless unrestricted net positions will have to be returned· 
because they were not used. 

P. Definition of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the term cash and cash equivalents includes cash in 
bank and short-tenn, highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at tllC date of 
purchase. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

Q. Compensated Absences 

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to 
reCeive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable the School 
District will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. 
The School District records a liability for accumulated unused vacation time when earned for all 
employees with more than one year of service. 

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability. The liability includes the employees who are cunently 
eligible to receive termination benefits. The amount is based on accumulated sick leave and the 
various rates stated in the labor contracts. The School District records a liability for accumulated 
unused sick leave for all employees. 

The entire compensation absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. 
On governmental fund financial statements, compensated absences are recognized as liabilities and 
expenditures to the extent payments come due each period upon the occurrence of employee 
resignations and retirements. For the enterprise fund, the entire amount of compensated absences is 
reported as a fund liability. 

R. Other Post.Employment Benefits 

Substantially all employees of the School District are covered under one of two currently applicable 
labor agreements. In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 9, the following post­
employment benefits are mandated by these labor agreements. 

Instructional employees who have served at least twenty-five years in the Line Mountain School 
District, and who are eligible for normal retirement, the "window" or disability retirement !i'om the 
field of public education under the PSERS will be granted $65 multiplied by the total number of 
unused sick days accumulated by the employee. Any instructional employees \Viti, 10 years in the 
Line Mountain School district are entitled to $20 for unused sick days up to 150 days and $30 for 
unused sick days above 150 days. During the 2010-2011 school year, the board agreed that those 
instructional employees with 20 years of PSERS credited service or is at least 55 years of age and 
retires no later tllan June 30, 2011, will receive a $50,000 Jump sum payment to be paid in five annual 
installments of $10,000. At June 30, 2014, $30,000 was due to retirees. 

Noninstructional employees, who have served in the Line Mountain School District, will be granted a 
retirement severance at the time of retirement equal to the sum of $25 per day for each day of 
accumulated sick days. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

S. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary items are transactious or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in 
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of management and 
are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions 
occurred during the fiscal year. 

T. Operating and Nonoperating Revenues 

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses 
related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary 
funds are charges to customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of 
providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. 
Other revenues aud expenses are classified as nonoperating in the financial statements. 

U. Restatement nf Beginning Net Position 

For fiscal year 2014, the District made a prior period adjustment due to the adoption of GASB 
Statement No. 65 as described in "New Accounting Pronouncements" below, which require the 
restatement of the June 30, 2013, net positiou in the Governmental Activities. The result is a decrease 
iu Net Position at July 1, 2013 of $910,547. This change is iu accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

Net Position, June 30, 2013, as previously reported 

Reclassification of Bond Issuance Costs 

Net Position, July 1, 2013, as restated 

V. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

$ 13,836,461 

( 910,547) 

$ 12,925,914 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position and/or the balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section f(Jr deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element 
represents a consumption of resources that applies to a future period(s) and therefore will not be 
recognized as an outt10w of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The School District has only 
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. The deferred charge all refunded debt resulting 
from the difference ill the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price is deferred 
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

V. Deferred OutflowslInflows of Resources - continued 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position andlor the balance sheet wil! sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an 
acquisition of resources that applies to a future period(s) and therefore wil! not be recognized as an inflow 
of resources (revenue) until that time. The School District has two types of this item, which arises only 
under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the 
first item, unavailable revenue, is reporting only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The 
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes and grants and these amounts are 
deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of resources in the period in which the amounts become 
available. TIle second item, Deferred Bond Premiums on debt is deferred and amortized over the life of the 
debt. 

Note 2 - Legal Compliance Budgets 

All principals at each educational level of the School District·submit requests for appropriation to the 
superintendent and business administrator. A tentative budget is prepared. It includes infonnation on the 
past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year. The proposed budget 
is presented to the School Board at public meetings for their review. 

Tentative adoption of the budget must be made 30 days prior to final adoption to allow for public 
review. Final adoption of the budget must occur on or before June 30. Budget transfers are typically made 
by the business administrator at year end with Board approval. 

Note 3 - Real Estate Tax and Deferred Revenue 

Based upon assessments provided by the County, the School District bills and collects its own 
properly taxes. The School District tax rate for the year ended June 30, 2014 was 70.00 mills for 
Northumberland County residents as levied by the School Board. The schedule for real estate taxes levied 
for each fiscal year is as follows: 

July 1 

July 1 - August 31 

September 1 - October 31 

November 1 - December 31 

December 31 
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LINI\ MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 3 - Real Estate Tax and Deferred Revenue - continued 

The School District, in accordance with GAAP, recognized the delinquent and unpaid taxes 
receivable reduced by an allowance for uncollectible taxes as detennined by the administration. A portion 
of the net amount estimated to be collectible which was measurable and available within 60 days was 
recognized as revenue and the balance deferred in the fund financial statements. 

The balances at June 30, 2014 are as follows: 

Allowance for Net TiL,\: 
Gross Taxes Uncollectible , Estimated to be Revenue Deferred 

Receivable Taxes Collectible Recognized Taxes 

Real Estate $ 1,513",245 $ (633.911) $ 879.334 $ 265.363 $ 613,271 

The deferred revenue balance in the General Fund is $613,971. 

Note 4 - Due from Other Governments 
Amounts due from other governments represent receivables for revenues earned by the School 

District. At June 3D, 2014, the following amounts are due from other governmental units: 

General Fund Proprietary Fund Total 

Federal Subsidies $ 158,822 $ 32,724 $ 191,546 
State Subsidies 67,513 2,706 70,219 
Local Subsidies 10,821 3,148 13,969 
Total $ 237,156 $ 38 578 $ 275,734 

Note 5 - Cash and Cash Eqnivalents and Investments 

The School District's cash deposits and investments are restricted by statute to United States Treasury 
bills, short-term obligations of the United States Government and certain obligations of the United 
States, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or its political subdivisions which are backed by the full faith 
and credit of those governmental entities. Additionally, the School District may invest in shares of a 
properly registered investment fund whose investments consist of the securities listed above. 
Deposits in banks and other financial institntions must be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation or the National Credit Union Insurance Fnnd. Deposits in excess of the maximulIl 
insurable amonnts mnst be collateralized by securities held by thal institution, in accordance WiUl the 
provisions of law. Pool pledging in accordance with P.L. 281, No. 72, (Act 72), is permissible. 
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Note 5 - Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments - continued 

Risk Categories - Deposits 

AIl deposits are carried at cost. There are three categories of credit risk that may apply to the School 
District's deposits. 

1. Insured or collateralized with securities held by the School District or by its agent in the School 
District's name. 

2. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's hust department or agent 
in the School District's name. 

3. Uncollateralized. 

Balances held in each category at June 30, 2014, are as follows: 

Carrying Amount Bank Balance Credit Risk 

Insured Deposits (FDIC) $ 369,402 $ 370,182 1 
Uninsured Deposits: 

Collateral held by Federal 
Reserve Bank in School 
Dish'ict's Name -0- -0- 2 

Uncollateralized 723,618 723,618 3 
Total Deposits $ 1.093,020 $ 1.093,800 

The amounts listed as uncollateralized have been secured by pool pledging in accordance with Act 72, 

Risk Categories· Investments 

All investments are stated at ,cost, which approximate fair value. There are three categories of credit 
risk that may apply to the School District's investments. 

1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the School Dish'ict or its agent in the School Dish'ict's 
name. 

2. Uninsured or unregistered, with securities held by the counter party's h'ust department or agent in 
the School District's name. 

3. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party, or by the counter pmty's 
trust department or agent, but not in thc School District's namc. 
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Note 5 - Cash and Cash Equivalents and Invesbnents - continued 

Risk Categories· Investments· continued 

Balances held in each invesbnent category at June 30, 2014, are as follows: 

Investments in Pools Managed by 
other Governments 

Certificates of Deposit 
. Total Investments 

Carrying Amount 

$ 4,609,796 
744,000 

$ 5.353,796 

Fair Value 

$ 4,842,496 
744,000 

$ 5.586.496 

Credit Risk 

1 
1 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The school places no limit on the amount the School may invest in any 
one user. Certificates of deposit and pooled pledged accounts comprise 100% of the School's total 
investments, 

Interest Rate Risk - The Schooi does have a formai investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, 

Credit Risk - The School has no invesbnent policy that would limit its investment choices to certain 
credit ratings, The celiificates and pooled pledged accounts are not rated, 
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Note 6 - Changes in Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2014 was as follows: 

GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES 

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 
Land 

Total Capital Assets Not Being 
Depreciated 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Buildings and Improvements 
Furniture and Equipment 

Total Assets Being Depreciated 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Buildings and Improvements 
Furniture aud Equipment 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, Net 

Govermnental Activities, Capital 
Assets, Net 

Beginning 
Balance Increases 

$ 484,226 $ 

484,226 

35,472,196 6,957,846 

6,496,317 122,137 

41,968,513 7,079,983 

7,509,797 1,016,494 

4,591,667 268,114 

12,101,464 1,284,608 

29,867,049 5,795,375 

$ 30,351,275 $ 5,795,375 
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Ending 
Decreases Balance 

$ 74,160 $ 410,066 

74,160 410,066 

42,430,042 

6,618,454 

49,048,496 

8,526,291 

4,859,781 

13,386,072 

35,662,424 

$ 74,160 $ 36,072,490 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 6 - Changes in Ca12ital Assets - continued 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVffIES 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Furniture and Equipment S 342,076 $ 4,944 $ $347,020 

Total Capital Assets, Being 
Depreciated 342,076 4,944 347,020 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 
Furniture and Equipment 281,675 8,189 289,864 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 281,675 8,189 289,864 
Total Capital Assets Being 

Depreciated, Net 60,401 ~3,245) 57,156 
Business - Type Activities Capital 

Assets, Net S 60,401 S (3,245) S $ 57,156 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

GOVERNMENT ACTIVfflES 

Instruction: 
Regular 
Special 

Support Services: 
Pupil 
Instructional Staff 
Administration 
Pupil Transportation 
Operation and Maintenance Plant 

Operation of Noninstructional Services: 
Student Activities 

Total Depreciation Expense -
Goverlll11cntal Activities 

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVfflES 

Food Service Fund 
Total Depreciation Expense -

Business - Type Activities 
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$ 540,886 
198,308 

61,150 
29,516 

144,603 
135,955 
144,704 

29,486 

$ 1,284,608 

$ 8,189 

$ 8,189 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 7 - Operating Lease Activity 

In 2013, the School District entered into a copier equipment lease agreement with Ricoh. The 

agreement qualifies as an operating lease for acconnting purposes and therefore, has been recorded as an 
expense in the accompanying statement of activities. The lease is a five year contract, commencing 
December 2013 to December 2018 with a fee of $56,940. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 

was $6,643. 

The fulure minimum lease payments over the next five years are shown below: 

June 30, 2015 
June 30, 2016 

June 30, 2017 
June 30, 2018 
June 30, 2019 

Total 

Total 
$ 11,388 

11,388 
11,388 
11,388 

4,745 

$ 50.297 

In 2009, the School District entered into a copier equipment lease agreement with Xerox. The 
agreement qualifies as an operating lease for accounting purposes and therefore,. has been recorded as an 
expense in the accompanying statement of activities. The lease is a five year contract, commencing 
September 2009 to September 2014 with a fee of $47,898. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 

was $9,580. 

The future minimum lease payments over the next five years are shown below: 

Tolal 
June 30, 2015 $ 2,393 
J,me 30,2016 -0-

June 30, 2017 -0-

June 30, 2018 -0-

June 30, 2019 -=:ll: 
Total $ 2393 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2014 

Note 7 - Operating Lease Activity - continued 

In 2010, the School District entered into a copier equipment lease agreement with Ikon. The 
agreement qualifies as an operating lease for accounting purposes and therefore, has been recorded as an 

expense in the accompanying statement of activities. The lease is a five year contract, commencing October 
2010 to October 2015 with a fee of $87,300. Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $17,460. 

The future minimum lease payments over the next five years are shown below: 

Total 

June 30, 2015 $17,460 
June 30, 2016 5,820 

June 30, 2017 -0-
June 30, 2018 -O-
June 30, 2019 --=l2: 

Total $ 23,28Q 

In 2010, the School District entered into a copier equipment lease agreement with Xerox. The 

agreement qualifies as an operating lease for accounting purposes and therefore, has been recorded as an 
expense in the accompanying statement of activities. The lease is a five year contract, commencing April 
2010 to April 2015 with a fee of $18,953. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $3,791. 

The future minimwn lease payments over the next five years are shown below: 

Total 
June 30, 2015 $ 3,159 
June 30, 2016 -0-

June 30, 2017 -0-

June 30, 2018 -0-
June 30, 2019 ~ 

Total $ 3.159 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

JWle 30, 2014 

Note 7 - Operating Lease Activity - continued 

In 2010, the School District entered into a copier equipment lease agreement with Ikon. The 
agreement qualifies as an operating lease for accounting purposes and therefore, has been recorded as an 
expense in the accompanying statement of activities. The lease is a five year contract, commencing April 
2010 to March 2015 with a fee of $6,180. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $1,236. 

The future minimum lease payments over the next five years are shown below: . 

Total 
June 30, 2015 $ 927 
June 30, 2016 -0-
June 30, 2017 -0-
June 30, 2018 -0-
June 30, 2019 -0-

Total $227 

In 2013, the School District entered into a mail machine lease agreement with First Choice Systems & 
Solutions, Inc. The agreement qualifies as an operating lease for accounting purposes and therefore, has 
been recorded as an expense in the accompanying statement of activities. The lease is a five year contract, 
commencing October 2013 to December 2018 with a fee of $10,017. Rent expense for the year ended June 
30,2014 was $1,431. 

The future minimum lease payments over the next five years are shown below: 

June 30, 2015 
Jll1le 30, 2016 
June 30, 2017 
June 30, 2018 
June 30, 2019 

Total 
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Total 
$1,908 

1,908 
1,908 
1,908 

954 

$~ 



Note 8 - General Long-Tenn Debt 

LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DlSTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Changes in the School District's long-term obligations dnring fiscal year 2014 were as follows: 

Bonds Payable: 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2014A 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2014B 
General Obligation Bonds, Sedes of 2013 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2009A 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2009AA 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2007 

Total Bonds Payable 
Other Liabilities: 

Compensated Absences 
Postcmployment Benefits 

Total Other Liabilities 

Total Govermnental Activities 
Long-Term Liabilities 

Business - Type Activity 
Compensated Absences 

$ 

Balance 
at 6/30/13 

9,310,000 

9,855,000 

1,520,000 

6,340,000 

1,680,000 

470,000 

29,175,000 

329,482 

187,946 

517,428 

$ 29,692,428 

$ 4,750 

Additions 

$6,250,000 

1,795,000 

8,045,000, 

10,615 

10,615 

$8,055,615 

$ 

2014A General Obligation Bonds Payable 

Reductions 

$ 

5,000 

370,000 

6,340,000 

1,680,000 

470,000 

8,865,000 

20,623 

20,623 

$ 8,885,623 

$ 3,437 

Balance 
at 6/30/14 

$ 6,250,000 

1,795,000 

9,310,000 

9,850,000 

1,150,000 

28,355,000 

308,859 

198,561 

507,420 

S 28,862,420 

$ 1,313 

On March 20, 2014 the School issued a $6,250,000 Series of 2014A General Obligation Bonds 
payable for the refunding of the 2009A General Obligation Bonds Payable, and to pay the costs related to 
issning and insuring the 2014A Bonds. 

interest is payable semi-annually at rates stipulated in the indenture (from 0.30% to 3.70%) on May 
15th and November 15th of each year. Principal payments are scheduled annually on November 15th of each 
year through November 15,2030. 

The bonds are secured with the full faith, credit and taxing power of the School District. 

The remaining scheduled maturity dates, principal and interest payments arc as follows: 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 8 - General Long-Term Debt - continued 

2014A General Obligation Bonds Payable - continued 

Fiscal Year 
Payment Interest Debt Ended Fiscal Debt 

Date PrinciEal Rate Interest Service 6/30 Service 
11/15/14 $ 5,000 0.30% $ 92,561 $ 97,561 
05/15/15 92,554 92,554 2015 $ 190,115 
11/15/15 310,000 0.42% 92,554 402,554 
05/15/16 87,904 87,904 2016 490,458 
11/15/16 320,000 0.55% 87,904 407,904 
05/15/17 83,104 83,104 2017 491,008 
11/15/17 325,000 0.85% 83,104 408,104 
05/15/18 78,229 78,229 2018 486,333 
11/15/18 350,000 1.20% 78,229 428,229 
05/15/19 72,979 72,979 2019 501,208 
11/15/19 360,000 1.60% 72,979 432,979 
05/15/20 69,379 69,379 2020 502,358 
11/15/20 370,000 2.00% 69,379 439,379 
05/15/21 65,679 65,679 2021 505,058 
11/15/21 380,000 2.25% 65,679 445,679 
05/15/22 61,499 61,499 2022 507,178 
11/15/22 385,000 2.55% 61,499 446,499 
05/15/23 56,686 56,686 2023 503,185 
11/15/23 395,000 2.75% 56,686 451,686 

05/15/24 50,761 50,761 2024 502,447 
11/15/24 405,000 2.90% 50,761 455,761 
05/15/25 44,686 44,686 2025 500,447 
11/15/25 410,000 3.00% 44,686 454,686 
05/15/26 38,536 38,536 2026 493,222 
11/15/26 420,000 3.20% 38,536 458,536 
05/15/27 31,921 31,921 2027 490,457 
11/15/27 435,000 3.35% 31,921 466,921 
05/15/28 24,744 24,744 2028 491,665 
11/15/28 445,000 3.50% 24,744 469,744 
05/15/29 17,068 17,068 2029 486,812 
11/15/29 460,000 3.60% 17,068 477,068 
05/15/30 8,787 8,787 2030 485,855 
11/15/30 475,000 3.75% 8,787 483,787 
05/15/31 2031 483,787 

Total $ 6,250,000 $ 1,861,593 $ 8,111,593 $ 8,111,593 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 8 - General Long-Tenn Debt - continued 

2014B General Obligation Bonds Payable 

On MaTch 20, 2014 Ule School District issued a $1,795,000 Series of 2014B General Obligation 
Bonds payable for the refunding of Ule 2009AA and 2007 General Obligation Bonds Payable, and to pay 
the costs related to issuing and insuring the 2014B Bonds. 

Interest is payable semi-annually at rates stipulated in the indenture (from 0.30% to 3.00%) on May 
15th and November 15th of each year. Principal payments are scheduled annually on November 15th of each 
year tlu'ough November 15, 2018. 

TIle bonds are secnred with the full faith, credit and taxing power of the School District. 

The remaining scheduled maturity dates, principal and interest payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Payment Interest Debt Ended Fiscal Debt 

Date Principal Rate Interest Service 6/30 Service 
11/15(14 $ 335,000 0.30% $ 22,403 $ 357,403 

05/15/15 21,900 21,900 2015 $ 379,303 

11/15/15 350,000 0.42% 21,900 371,900 

05/15/16 16,650 16,650 2016 388,550 

11/15/16 350,000 0.55% 16,650 366,650 

05/15/17 11,400 11,400 2017 378,050 

11/15/17 470,000 0.85% 11,400 481,400 

05/15/18 4,350 4,350 2018 485,750 

11/15/18 290,000 1.20% 4,350 294,350 

05/15/19 2019 294,350 

Total $1,795,000 $ 131,003 $ 1,926,003 $1,926,003 
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LINE MOUNT AlN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 8 - General Long-Term Debt - continued 

2013 General Obligation Bonds Payable 

On May 14, 2013 the School District issued a $9,310,000 Series of 2013 General Obligation Bonds 
payable for the construction additions/renovatiol1~ to the High School and Trevorton Elementary School, 
and to pay the costs related to issuing and insuring the 2013 Bonds. 

Interest is payable semi-annually at rates stipulated in the indenture (from 0.45% to 3.10%) on May 
15th and November 15th of each year. Principal payments are scheduled anllually on November 15th of each 
year through November 15, 2034. 

The bonds arc secured will' the full faith, credit and taxing power of the School District. 

The remaining scheduled maturity oates, principal and interest payments arc as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Payment Interest Debt Ended Fiscal Debt 

Date PrinciEal Rate Interest Service 6/30 Service 
11/15/14 $ 85,000 0.45% $ 121,563 $ 206,563 
05/15/15 121,372 121,372 2015 $ 327,935 
11115/15 75,000 0.60% 121,372 196,372 
05/15/16 121,146 121,146 2016 317,518 
11/15/16 80,000 2.00% 121,146 201,146 
05/15/17 120,346 120,346 2017 321,492 
11/15/17 300,000 2.00% 120,346 420,346 
05/15/18 117,346 117,346 2018 537,692 
11/15/18 305,000 2.00% 117,346 422,346 
05/15/19 114,296 114,296 2019 536,642 
11/15/19 310,000 2.00% 114,296 424,296 
05/15/20 111,196 111,196 2020 535,492 
11/15/20 315,000 2.00% 111,196 426,196 
05/15/21 108,046 108,046 2021 534,242 
11/15/21 320,000 2.00% 108,046 428,046 
05/15/22 104,846 104,846 2022 532,892 
11/15/22 330,000 2.00% 104,846 434,846 
05/15/23 101,546 101,546 2023 536,392 
11/15/23 335,000 2.00% 101,546 436,546 
05/15/24 98,196 98,196 2024 534,742 
11/15/24 345,000 2.15% 98,196 443,196 
05/15/25 94,488 94,488 2025 537,684 
11/15/25 350,000 2.30% 94,488 444,488 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 8 - General Long-Term Debt - continued 

2013 General Obligation Bonds Payable - continued 

Fiscal Year 
Payment Interest Debt Ended FiscalDebt 

Date Principal Rate Interest Service 6/30 Service 

05/15/26 90,463 90,463 2026 534,951 
11/15/26 360,000 2.45% 90,463 450,463 
05/15/27 86,053 86,053 2027 536,516 
11/15/27 370,000 2.55% 86,053 456,053 
05/15/28 81,335 81,335 2028 537,388 
11/15/28 380,000 2.65% 81,335 461,335 
05/15/29 76,300 76,300 2029 537,635 
11/15/29 385,000 2.75% 76,300 461,300 
05/15/30 71,006 71,006 2030 532,306 
11/15/30 400,000 3.00% . 71,006 471,006 
05/15/31 65,006 65,006 2031 536,012 
11/15/31 840,000 3.00% 65,006 905,006 
05/15/32 52,406 52,406 2032 957,412 
11/15/32 860,000 3.00% 52,406 912,406 
05/15/33 39,506 39,506 2033 951,912 
11/15/33 1,005,000 3.05% 39,506 1,044,506 
05/15/34 24,180 24,180 2034 1,068,686 
11/15/34 1,560,000 3.10% 24,181 1,584,181 
05/15/35 2035 1,584,181 

Total $ 9,310,000 $ 3,719,722 $ 13,029,722 $ 13,029,722 

2012 General Obligation Bonds Payable 

On August 23, 2012 the School District issued a $9,860,000 Series of 2012 General Obligation 
Bonds payable for the refunding of the 2007 General Obligation Bonds Payable, and to pay the costs 
related to issuing and insuring the 2012 Bonds. 

Interest is payable semi-aunually at rates stipulated in the indenture (from 1.00% to 3.75%) on May 
151h and November 151h of each year. Principal payments are scheduled annually on November 151h of each 
year through November 15, 2033. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 8 - General Long-Term Debt - continued 

2012 General Obligation Bonds Payable - continued 

The bonds are secured with the full faith, credit and taxing power of the School District. 

The remaining scheduled maturity dates, principal and interest payments are as follows: 
Fiscal Year 

Payment Interest Debt Eooed Fi~calDebt 

Date Principal Rate Interest Service 6/30 Service 

11/15/14 $ 5,000 1.125% $ 14V91 $ 146,791 

05/15/15 141,763 141,763 2015 $ 288,554 

11/15/15 5,000 1.125% 141,763 146,763 

05/15/16 141,735 141,735 2016 288,498 

11/15/16 5,000 2.000% 141,735 146,735 

05/15/17 141,685 141,685 2017 288,420 

11/15/17 5,000 2.000% 141,685 146,685 

05/15/18 141,634 141,634 2018 288,319 

11/15/18 200,000 2.000% 141,634 341,634 

05/15/19 139,634 139,634 2019 481,268 

11/15/19 535,000 2.000% 139,634 674,634 

05/15/20 134,284 l34,284 2020 808,918 

11/15/20 545,000 2.250% 134,284 679,284 

05/15/21 128,153 128,153 2021 807,437 

11/15/21 555,000 2.375% 128,153 683,153 

05/15/22 121,562 121,562 2022 804,715 

11/15/22 570,000 2.375% 121,562 691,562 

05/15/23 114,794 114,794 2023 806,356 

11/15/23 585,000 2.500% 114,794 699,794 

05/15/24 107,481 107,481 2024 807,275 

11/15/24 600,000 2.500% 107,481 707,481 

05/15/25 99,981 99,981 2025 807,462 
'. 

11/15/25 615,000 2.625% 99,981 714,981 

05/15/26 91,909 91,909 2026 806,890 

11/15/26 630,000 2.750% 91,909 721,909 

05/15/27 83,247 83,247 2027 805,156 

11/15/27 650,000 2.875% 83,247 733,247 

05/15/28 73,903 73,903 2028 807,150 

11/15/28 670,000 3.000% 73,903 743,903 

05/15/29 63,853 63,853 2029 807,756 

11/15/29 690,000 3.250% 63,853 753,853 
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June 30, 2014 

Note 8 - General Long-Tern) Debt - continued 

2012 General Obligation Bonds Payable - continued 

Fiscal Year 
Payment Interest Debt Ended 

Date Principal Rate Interest Service 6/30 

05/15/30 52,641 52,641 2030 
11/15/30 715,000 3.375% 52,641 767,641 
05/15/31 40,575 40,575 2031 
11/15/31 780,000 3.500% 40,575 820,575 
05/15/32 26,925 26,925 2032 
11/15(32 810,000 3.500% 26,925 836,925 
05/15/33 12,750 12,750 2033 
11/15/33 680,000 3.750% 12,750 692,750 
05/15/34 2034 

Total $9,850,000 $3,858,809 $ 1~,708,809 

2010 General Obligation Bonds Payable 

Fiscal Debt 

Service 

806,494 

808,216 

847,500 

849,675 

692,750 

$ 13,708,809 

On November 9, 2010, the School District issued a $2,535,000 Series of 2010 General Obligation Bonds 
payable for the refunding of the 2005 General Obligation Bonds Payable, and to pay the costs related to 
issuing and insuring the 2010 Bonds. 

Interest is payable semi-annually at rates stipulated in the indenture (from 1.50% to 2.00%) all May 15th 

and November 15th of each year. Principal payments'are scheduled annually on November 15'" of each year 
through November 15, 2016. 

The note is secured with the full faith, credit and taxing power of the School District. 

The remaining scheduled maturity dates, principal and interest payments are as follows: 

Payment 
Date 

11/15/14 
05/15/15 
11/15/15 
05/15/16 
11/15/16 
05/15/17 

Total 

Principal 
$ 375,000 

385,000 

390,000 

$ 1,150,000 

Interest 

Rate 
2.000% 

2.000% 

2.000% 

$ 
Intercst 

11,500 
7,750 
7,750 
3,900 
3,900 

$ 

Debt 

Service 
386,500 

7,750 
392,750 

3,900 
393,900 

$ 34,800 $ 1,184,800 .. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

6/30 

2015 

2016 

2017 

Fiscal Debt 

$ 

Service 

394,250 

396,650 

393,900 

$ 1,184.800 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 8 - General Long-TenB Debt - continued 

2009A Genel'al Obligation Bonds Payable 

During August 2009, the School District issued a $6,915,000 Series of 2009A General Obligation Bonds. 
The proceeds were used to provide funds for additions and improvements to the High School and Trevorton 
Elementary School buildings and related facilities and grounds. 

The bonds are fully registered and were issued in multiples of $5,000. Interest is payable semi-annually at 
rates stipulated in the indenture (3.000% to 4.875%) on May 15,h and November 15'h of each year. Principal 
payments arc scheduled annually on November 15'h of each year through November 15, 2030. 

The note is secured with the full faith, credit and taxing power of the School District. 

The 2009A Bond was redeemed with the 2014A Bond. 

2009AA General Obligation Bonds 

During August 2009, the School District issued a $2,835,000 Series of 2009AA General Obligation 
Bonds. The proceeds were used to defease the General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2003. 

The bonds are fully registered and were issued in multiples of $5,000. Interest is payable semi­
allllually, at rates stipulated in the indenture (3.00% to 3.25%) on May 15th and November 15'h of each 
year. Principal payments are scheduled allllually on November 15'h of each year through November 15, 
2017. The bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

The bonds are secured with the full faith, credit and taxing power of the School District. 

The 2009AA Bond was redeemed with the 2014B Bond. 

2007 General Obligation Bonds 

On November 15, 2007, the School District issued a $10,000,000 Series of 2007 General Obligation 
Bonds. The proceeds of this bond issue were used to fund improvements to the school district's buildings 
and equipment. 

The bonds are fully registered and were issued in multiples of $5,000. Interest is payable semi­
annually at rates stipulated in the indenture (3.50% to 4.30%) on May 15th aud November IS' of each year. 
Principal payments are scheduled annually on November 15'h of each year through November 15, 2033. 
The bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

The bonds are secured with the full faith, credit and taxing power of the School District. 
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June 30, 2014 

Note 8 - General Long-Term Debt - continued 

2007 General Obligation Bonds - continued 

The General Obligations Bonds, Series of 2012 were used to refund $9,520,000 of the 2007 General 
Obligation Bonds. Interest remains payable semi-annually at rates from 3.55% to 3.80% on May 15th and 
November 15th of each year. Principal payments are scheduled annually on November 15th of each year 
through November 15, 2018. 

The 2007 Bond was redeemed with the 2014B Bond. 

The aggregate maturities of alliong-tenn borrowings for the next five years and to maturity are: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2015 $ 805,000 

2016 1,125,000 

2017 1,145,000 

2018 1,100,000 

2019 1,145,000 

2020 thru 2024 6,290,000 

2025 tbm 2029 7,085,000 

2030 thm 2034 8,100,000 
2035 thm 2039 1,560,000 

Total $ 28,355,000 
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Note 9 - Pension Plan 

LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Finaocial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

The School District participates in the Public School Employees' Retirement System (the 
system), a governmental cost sharing multiple-employer defmed benefit plan with the following benefits 
provided: Retirement and disability, legislatively mandated ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments and health 
care insurance premium assistance to qualifying annuitants. The plan is authorized by the Public School 
Employees' Retirement Code (Act No. 96 of October 2,1975, as amended) (24 PA.C.S. 8101-8535). The 
system issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the plan. A copy of the report may be obtained by writing to Beth 
Girman, Office of Financial Management, Public School Employees' Retirement System, 5 N. 5th Street, 
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1905 or by em ailing Beth at bgirman@pa.goy. The CAFR is also available on the 
publications page of the PSERS website, www.psers.state.pa.us. 

The contribution policy is established in thePnblic School Employees' Retirement Code and requires 
contributions by active members, employers, and the Commonwealth. Active members who joined the 
system prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25 percent (Membership Class T-C) or at 6.50 percent 
(Membership Class T -D) of the member's qualifying compensation. Members who joined the system on or 
after July 22, 1983, and who were active or inactive as of July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25 percent 
(Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50 percent (Membersbip Class T-D) of the member's qualifying 
compensation. Members who joined the system after June 30, 2001, and before July 1, 2011, contribute at 
7.50 percent (automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected Class T­
D membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after January 1, 2002. 
Members who joined the system after June 30, 2011, automatically contribute at the Membership Class T-E 
rate of 7.50 percent (base rate) of the members qualifying compensation. All new hires after June 30, 2011, 
who elect Class T-F Membership, contribute at 10.30 percent (base rate) of the member's qualifying 
compensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are atfected by a "shared risk" provision in Act 120 of 
2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class T-E contribution rate to fluctuate 
between 7.50 percent and 9.50 percent and Membership Class T-F contribution rate to fluctuate between 
10.30 percent and 12.30 percent. Contributions required of employers are based upon an actuarial 
valuation. For fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the rate of employer's contribution was 16.93 percent of 
covered payroll. The 16.93 percent rate is composed of a pension contribution rate of 16.00 percent for 
pension benefits and .93 percent for healthcare insurance premium assistance. Employer contributions and 
percentages of contributions for 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as folJows, respectively, contribution amounts -
$1,180,576, $849,710 and $601,348, percentages of contributions -16.93%,12.36% and 8.65%. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 10 - Other Postemployment Bencfits 

Beginning in fiscal year 2009, the School implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 45 for other postemployment bencfits (OPEB) offered to retirees. This standard 
addresses how local governments should account for and report their costs related to postemployment 
healthcare and other non-pension benefits, such as the School's retiree health benefit subsidy. Historically 
the School's subsidy was fundcd on a pay-as-you-go basis but GASB 45 requires that the School accrue the 
cost of the retiree health subsidy and other postemployment benefits during the period of employees' active 
employment, while the benefits arc being carned, and disclose the unfunded actu.arial accrued liability in 
order to accurately account for the total future cost of postemployment benefits arid the financial impact on 
the School. This funding methodology mirrors the funding approach used for pension benefits. The School 
has implemented GASB 45 prospectively. 

The annual cost of other postemployment benefits (OPEB) under GASB 45 is called the annual 
required conttibution or ARC. The estimated pay-as-you-go cost for OPEB benefits is $94,944 for fiscal 
year 2014. The ARC for fiscal year 2014 is $105,559 and the estimated net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 
2014 is $198,561. 

The School has elected not to pre-fund OPEB liabilities. The School is required to contribute the 
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with 

. the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover nonnal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the 
School's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount contributed to the plan, and the changes in the 
School's net OPEB obligation for the health care benefits. 

Annual Required Contribution $ 108,639 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 8,458 
Adjustment to Annual Required Contnbution (11,538) 
Annual OPEB Cost 105,559 
Estimated Contributions Made (94,944) 
Estimated Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 10,615 
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 187,946 
Estimated Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year =,$,"===l;1~98~,5~6g1= 

As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actumial valuation date, the plan was completely unfunded. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $991,583 and actuarial value of assets was $-0-, resulting in an 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $991,583. As of the actuarial valuation date, the covered 
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $6,251,785, and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 15.86%. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 10 - Other Postemployment Benefits - continued 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of potential occurrences of certain events in the future. Examples include 
assnmptions about future employment, mortality, healthcare costs trends, inflation, etc. Amounts 
detemlined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the District are 
subject to constant changes and modifications as actual results are compared with past expectations and 
new estimates and assumptions are formed regarding the future. Projections of retiree benefits for financial 
reporting purposes are based on current plan activities as it is handled by the District and the benefits are 
received by eligible plan members and include the types of benefits provided at the tinle of each valuation 
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the District and plan members. The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-tclm 
perspective of the calculations. 

In the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost method was used. The actuarial 
assumptions include a 4.50% interest rate and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0% in 2011, 
decreasing 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.5% in 2016. Rates gradually decrease from 5.3% in 2017 
to 4.2% in 2089 and later based on the Society of Actuaries Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model. 

Note 11 - Jointly Governed Organizations 

The School District participates in the Northumberland County Career and Technology Center 
(NCCTC) which is governed by a joint operating committee. The committee is composed of seven 
members, two appointed annually from each Mount Carmel and Line Mountain School Districts, and three 
appointed annually from Shamokin School District. The NCCTC provides vocational and technical 
education for students of the three member school districts. Each member school district pays tuition to the 
NCCTC based upon its relative enrollment percentage at the school. The member school districts approve 
the budget of the NCCTC. 

This joint venture does not mcet the criteria for inclusion within thc reporting entity because the 
NCCrC is separately charted from the school districts it serves, its joint operating committee controls the 
employment of personnel, its joint operating committee has the power to approve all operating expenditnres 
of the NCCTC, and the NCCTC is maintained as a separate opcrating unit. 
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LlNE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2014 

Note 11 - Jointly Governed Organizations - continued 

For the year ended June 30, 2014, tue member school districts and the percentage of tuition received from 
each member school district were as follows: 

Southern Columbia 
Shamokin 
Mount Carmel 
Line Mountain 

1.42% 
47.52% 
34.75% 
16.31% 

100.00% 

The School District's share of the joint venture is not determinable. The most recent NCCTC 
financial information for the year ended JillIe 30, 2014 is available by contacting the Executive Director, 
Northumberland County Career and Technology Center, Coal Township, P A. 

A summary of this information, for all funds and the component unit based on the accrual basis of 
accounting, is presented below: 

Assets· $ 2,863,015 

Liabilities $ 530,738 
Fund Equity 2,332,277 
Total Liabilities and net Position $ 2,863,015 

Revenues $ 1,865,174 
Expenditures 2,041,395 
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures $ (176,221) 

The School District made tuition payments, debt service payments and administrative costs 
payments to NCCTC of $216,350 for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

No amounts were due to/from NCCTC at June 30, 2014. 

The NCCTC capital assets at June 30, 2014 are valued at a historical cost of $8,806,187 with 
accumulated depreciation of $6,710,576, resulting in net capital assets of $2,095,611. 

The NCCTC Authority has long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2014 of $192,433. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Note 11 - Jointly Governed Organizations - continued 

NCCTC Authority issued debt to Sun Tmst Equipment Finance and Leasing Corp. dated October 
2008, in the aggregate principal amount of $340,798 for the purpose of finance energy conservation 
measures that will reduce operating costs. Debt service payments are due semi-annually on January 1 and 
July 1 of each year until the principal sum thereof is paid on or before January 2023. The interest rate is 
4.99%. 

The debt is secured by a pledge and assignment of the lease rentals payable by the NCCTC 
Committee and its 4 member school districts. Line Mountain School District's share of this debt obligation 
balance at June 30, 2014 will be 16.31% based upon Line Mountain School District's cunent market value 
of property as a relative percentage of total NCCTC member schools at June 30, 2014. 

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies 

The School District receives federal and state grants and subsidies that are subject to audit and review 
by the Auditor General. These audits could result in a request for reimbursement by the state for amounts 
disallowed under the telms and conditions of the appropriate agency. In the opinion of the District's 
managelllent, such reimbursements, if any, will not be significant. 

The school district is party to legal proceedings, many of which occur in the norlllal course of 

governmental operations. It is not possible at the present tinle to estimate the outcome or liability, if any, of 

the school district with respect to the various proceedings. However, the school district's legal counsel 

believes that ultimate liability resulting from these lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the 

financial condition of the sellOol district. 

The school district currently has a construction project under contract. The following details the 
commitments and projected costs for the project as of June 30, 2014. 

High School (Trevorton Elementary School PrQject 

Bognet, Inc. 
The Roberl Feaster Corp. 
G.R Nota Electrical construction, Inc. 

Note 13 - Risk Management 

Commitment! 
Project Costs 

$ 396,013 
2,872,300 

435,549 
$3,703,862 

Costs Paid through 
June 30, 2014 

$ 367,576 
2,805,848 

413,772 
$ ;).,587,196 

Balance Duel 
Project Costs 

$ 28,437 
66,452 
21,777 

$11D.666 

The School District is exposed (0 various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; il~uries to employees; and natural disasters. The School District has 
purchased various insurance policies to safeguard its assets from risk of loss. Insurance coverage appears 

. to be consistent with previous years. During the year ended June 30, 2014, and the three previous flscal 
years, no settlements exceeded insurance coverage. 
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Note 14 - Revenues 

LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 

Major sources of revenue by fund type for the year ended June 30, 2014: 

General Capital Enterprise 

Fund Project Fund Fund 

Local Taxes $ 7,084,129 $ $ $ 
Lecal Miscellaneous 869,629 308,040 

Interest Income 8,211 476 73 
State Funds 9,902,628 40,192 
Federal Funds 346,579 306,991 

Contributions 
Sale of Fixed Assets 60,222 

Bond Proceeds 8,045,000 
Bond Premiums 182,555 

$26,498,953 $ 476 $ 655,296 $ 
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Actuarial 
Va1~ation 

Date 

7/1(2011 

7/1/2008 

LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Postemploymcnt Benefits Plan 
Required Supplementary Infoffi1ation 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Liability Unfunded 
Value of (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered 
Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 

(a) (b) (b - a) (a - b) (c) 

$ $ 991,583 $ 991,583 0.00% S 6,251,785 

S $1,086,518 $ 1,086,518 0.00% S 6,272,865 

UAALasa 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((b - a) I c) 

15.86% 
17.32% 

This valuation has been calculated using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under the Entry 
Age Normal Cost Method, the Normal Cost is the present value of benefits a1located to the year 
following the valuation date. Benefits are allocated on a level basis over the earnings of an 
individual between the date of hire and the assumed retirement age. The Accrued Liability as of the 
valuation date is the excess of the present value of future benefits over the present value of future 
Normal Cost. The Unfunded Accrued Liability is the excess of the Accrued Liability over the 
Actuarial Value of Assets. Actuarial gains and losses serve to reduce or increase the Unfunded 
Accrued Liability. 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Pass - Through 
Source Federal Grantor's Federal 

Federal/Grantor Program Title Code CFDANumber Number EXEenditures 
U.S. Department of Education 
Passed Through PA Dept. of Education 

Title I I 84.010 013-14-0229 $ 247,390 
Title II - Improving Teacher Quality I 84.367 020-13-0229 13,000 
Title II - Improving Teacher Quality I 84.367 020-14-0229 53,253 

Passed Through the Central Susquehanna 
Intennediate Unit 

IDEA I 84.027 062-14-0-016 178,585 

IDEA- 619 I 84.173 131-13-0-016 2,367 
Subtotal CSIU IDEA Cluster 180,952 
TOTAL DEPART1VillNT OF EDUCATION 494,595 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Passed Through P A Dept. of Education 

NSLP I 10.555 N/A 228,530 
NSLI' - Breakfast I 10.553 N/A 38,927 

Passed Through P A Dept. of Agriculture 
Value of USDA Commodities I 10.555 N/A 39,534 

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE CLUSTER 306,991 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF k'EImRAL AWARDS $ 801,586 

Source Codes: D - Direct Funding I - Indirect Funding 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Noles 10 the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
June 30, 2014 

Note 1 - Basis of PresentatioI1 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 

Line Mountain School District and is presented on the accmal basis of accounting. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Govel'llments alld Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 

differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

Note 2 - Relationship to General Pur}!ose Financial Statements 

Federal financial assistance revenues are reported in the School District's general purpose financial 

statements as follows: 

General Furld $ 346,579 
Cafeteria Fund 306,991 
Total per Financial Statements 653,570 
Title II Reimbursement for the 2012 Fiscal Year 347 
Access Reimbursements Not Included on the 

Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards (33,283) 

IDEA Funds are Coded to Local rlmds but 
Included on the Schedule of Expenditures 

of Federal Awards 180,952 

Total Federal Revenue per Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 801,586 

Note 3 - USDA Donated Commodities 

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market value of the commodities 
received and disbursed. At June 30, 2014, the organization had food commodities totaling $6,119 in 
invenlory. 
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Kenneth L.Wagner, Jr., CPA Ronald P. Dreese, CPAlPFS Brian L. Elsasser, CPA, CVA 
kwagner®wdeapc.com rdreese@wdeapc.com beisasser@wdeapc.(.om 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER fiNANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTImR 

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS 

Members of the Board 
-

Line Mountain School District 
\ 

Herndon, PA ' 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Accollnting Standards 
isslled by the Comptroller General of the United States, the fmancial statements of the governmental 
activities, the husiness-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Line Mountain School District, Herndon, Permsylvania, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Line Mountain School District's, . 
of Herndon, Pennsylvania, basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 
19,2014. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and peIfonning our audit of the financial statements, we considered Line Mountain School 
District's, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to 
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
0pulions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Line Mountain School District's, ofHern~on, Pennsylvania, internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Line Mountain School District'S, of Herndon, Pennsylvania,. 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis: A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected all a tunely basis. 
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Line Mountain School District's, of Herndon, 
Pennsylvania, financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

W~, ~{~-J-~rP/~, 
WAGNER, DREESE, ELSASSER & ASSOCIATES, P.c. 
Certified Public Accoulltants and Consultants 
Selinsgrove, P A 
November 19,2014 
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Kenne~h:~ .. Wagner: Jr., CPA 
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Ronald P. Dreese, CPAJPFS Brian L. Elsasser, CPA, eVA 
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INDEPEl\'DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND O~ INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULARA·133 

Members of the Board 
Line Mountain School District 
Herndon,PA 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Line Mountain School District's, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, compliance with the types of 
compliance requireme~ts described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of Line Mountain School District's, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. Line Mountain School District's, of Herndon, 
Pennsylvania, major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

\ 
Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 

applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Line Mountain School District's, of 
Herndon, Pennsylvania, major federal programs based on our audit of !lle types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
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Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether'noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal prograJll occurred, An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence about Line Mountain School District's, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal detennination of Line Mountain School District's, of 
Herndon, PerIDsylvania, compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, Line Mountain School District, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, complied, in all material 
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Report 011 Internal Control over' Compliance 

Management of Line Mountain School District, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, is responsible for establishing 
and maiJltaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. In planning and perfonning our audit of compliance, we considered Line Mountain 
School District's, of Herndon, PennsylVania, internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determinc the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Linc Mountain School District's, of Herndon, Pennsylvania, internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the desigu or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 

not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to he material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB 

Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is nol suitable for any other purpose. 

W~I~(~+~tF,c 
WAd'NER, DREESE, ELSASSER & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants and Consuitallls 
Selinsgrove, P A 

November 19, 2014 
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LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of Auditor's Report Issued: 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting: 
Significant Deficiencies Identified? 

Noncompliance Material to Financial Statements Noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over Major Programs: 
Significant Deficiencies Identified? 

Type of Auditor's Report Issued on Compliance 
for Major Program: 

Any Audit Findings Disclosed that are Required to 
be Reported in Accordance with Section 51O(a) of 

OlvIB Circular A-133? 

Identification of Major Programs: 

CFDANumber 
10.555 

10.553 

Dollar Threshold used to Distinguish Between 
Type A and Type B Programs: 

Auditee Qualified as Low - Risk Auditee: 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

There are no Findings to be Reported 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

There are no Findings to be Reported 
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Unmodified Opinion 

Yes X None Repoi:ted 

Yes X No 

Yes ~ None Reported 

Unmodified Opinion 

Yes X No 

Name of Federal PrognUl! 
NSLP 

NSLP-Breakfast 

$300,000 

X Yes No 



LINE MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

There were no findings or questioned costs for the prior year ended June 30, 2013. 
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